# Dated 4 Novemeber 2021

# **Grant Agreement**

between

# SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

and

**CLINTON HEALTH ACCESS INITIATIVE, INC (CHAI)** 

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	4
2.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	4
3.	PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF GRANT	10
4.	PAYMENT OF GRANT	11
5.	FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT	12
6.	ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS	13
7.	MONITORING AND REPORTING	15
8.	ANNUAL GRANT REVIEW	16
9.	DELIVERY CHAIN AND RISK MAPPING	16
10.	EXIT PLAN	16
11.	PROCUREMENT LAW, STATE AID AND VALUE FOR MONEY	17
12 .	ASSETS AND INVENTORY	17
13.	DISPOSAL OF ASSETS, CHANGE OF USE AND ASSIGNMENT	18
14 .	GRANTRECIPIENT PERSONNEL	18
15.	INSURANCE	19
16.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND FINANCIAL OR OTHER IRREGULARITIES	19
17 .	PREVENTION OF BRIBERY	20
18.	TERRORISM	21
19.	SAFEGUARDING FOR THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL EXPLOITATION, ABUSE AND HARASSMEN	T 21
20.	SPENDING CONTROLS-MARKETING, ADVERTISING, COMMUNICATIONS AND CONSULTANC	Y 22
21.	WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING OR REPAYMENT OF GRANT	22
22	. LOSSES, GIFTS AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS	22
23	BORROWING	23
24.	ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND PUBLIC STATEMENTS	23
25.	CONFIDENTIALITY	24
26.	FREEDOM OF INFORMATION, DATA PROTECTION AND HUMAN RIGHTS	25
27.	ODA	26
28.	ODA TRANSPARENCY	27
29.	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS	27
30.	ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS	28
31.	CHANGES TO THE AUTHORITY'S REQUIREMENTS	28
32	TERMINATION	28
33	AMENDMENT OR VARIATION OF THE AGREEMENT	30

34.	CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION AND SUPPORT FOR TRANSFER OF RESPONSIBILITY	30
35.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	30
36.	NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY	31
37.	JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY	31
38 .	CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999	31
39.	RESEARCH SURVEYS, QUESTIONNAIRES	31
40.	NOTICES	31
41 .	GOVERNING LAW	32
ANI	NEX 1- Grant Offer Letter	34
ANI	NEX 2 - The Funded Activities	35
ANI	NEX 3 - Payment and Reporting Schedule	38
ANI	NEX 4 - Eligible Expenditure Schedule (breakdown of forecast grant expenditure)	39
ANN	IEX 5 - Grant Claim Form	41
ANN	NEX 6 -Agreed Outputs/Long Term Outcomes and Key Performance Indicators	43

#### THIS AGREEMENT is made on the 4 November 2021

BETWEEN:

**SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE** (acting as part of the Crown) of 79 Whitehall, London, SWIA 2NS (the "Authority"); and

Clinton Health Access Initiative, Inc (CHAI) is a nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Arkansas, USA with tax ID 27-1414646 whose principal address is at 383 Dorchester Avenue, Boston, MA 02127, USA ("Grant Recipient").

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

- 1.1. The following standard terms and conditions apply to Grant Recipients receiving financial assistance from the Authority. These conditions should be read in conjunction with Grant Offer Letter issued by the Authority. The terms and conditions set out in this document, together with the accompanying Annexes together comprise the "Agreement" pursuant to which financial assistance (in the form of the Grant) is given by the Authority to the Grant Recipient.
- 1.2. The Grant Recipient should note that:
  - 1.2.1. the Authority has the discretion under section 1(1) of the International Development Act 2002 to provide a person or body with development assistance if it is satisfied that the provision of the assistance is likely to contribute to a reduction in povert y.
  - 1.2.2. the Authority is not permitted to pay Grants in advance of need, but Grants may be paid in advance of expenditure provided that the Funded Activities have been delivered during the Funding Period;
  - 1.2.3. no VAT is payable on Grants; and
  - 1.2.4. failure to comply with the conditions of the Agreement may result in the Grant payments being suspended, reduced, reclaimed or withheld, and/or the Grant being withdrawn, without prejudice to any other civil or criminal sanctions which may be appropriate.

#### 2. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

2.1. In this Agreement the following terms will have the following meanings:

"Annex/es" means the annexes attached to this Agreement;

"Asset" means any assets that are to be purchased or developed using the Grant, including equipment or any other assets which may be a Fixed Asset as appropriate in the relevant context:

"Breach" means a failure to comply (by act or omission) with any of the Terms and Conditions of the Agreement;

"Bribery Act" means the Bribery Act 2010 and any subordinate legislation made under that Act from time to time together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by the relevant government department concerning this legislation;

"Central Government Body" means a body listed in one of the following sub-categories of the Central Government classification of the Public Sector Classification Guide, as published and amended from time to time by the Office for National Statistics:

- (a) Government Department;
- (b) Non-Departmental Public Body or Assembly Sponsored Public Body (advisory, executive, or tribunal);
- (c) Non-Ministerial Department; or
- (d) Executive Agency;

"Commencement Date" means the 4 November 2021;

"Comptroller and Auditor General" means the leader of the National Audit Office in the United Kingdom;

"Confidential information" means any information (however conveyed, recorded or preserved) disclosed by a Party or its personnel to another Party (and/or that Party's personnel) whether before or after the date of this Agreement, including but not limited to:

- (a) any information that ought reasonably to be considered as confidential (whether or not it is so marked) relating to:
  - the business, affairs, customers, clients, suppliers or plans of the disclosing Party; and
  - (ii) the operations, processes, product information, know-how, designs, trade secrets or software of the disclosing Party; and
- (b) any information developed by the Parties in the course of delivering the Funded Activities;
- (c) the Authority's Personal Data;
- (d) the Grant Recipient's Personal Data;
- (e) any information derived from any of the above, and

Confidential Information shall not include information which:

- (a) was public knowledge at the time of disclosure (otherwise than by breach of clause 25);
- (b) was in the possession of the receiving Party, without restriction as to its disclosure, before receiving it from the disclosing Party;
- (c) is received from a third party (who lawfully acquired it) without restriction as to its disclosure; or
- (d) is independently developed without access to the Confidential Information;

"Controller" has the meaning given to it in the Information Acts;

"Delivery Chain Map" means a plan that identifies all of the Downstream Partners;

"Delivery Chain Risk Map" means the plan that builds on the Delivery Chain Map to capture and manage the risk to the successful delivery of the Funded Activities in relation to the Downstream Partners. The Delivery Chain Risk Map shall detail the formal relationships in place, the flow of funds from the initial source and the potential risks to the end beneficiaries.

The Delivery Chain Risk Map shall be updated regularly by the Grant Recipient and when there are material changes to the project risk assessment and/ or to the Downstream Partners;

"Disposal" means the disposal, sale, transfer of the Grant or any interest in any Asset and includes any contract for disposal;

"Domestic Law" means an applicable law, statute, bye-law, regulation, order, regulatory policy, guidance or industry code, judgement of a relevant court of law, or directives or requirements of any regulatory body, delegated or subordinate legislation which replaces EU law as a consequence of the UK leaving the European Union;

#### "Domestic Successor" means:

- (a) a body that takes over the functions of the EU Commission in the UK on the date the UK withdraws from the European Union; or
- (b) the relevant courts in England which take over the functions of the Court of Justice of the European Union in England on the date the UK withdraws from the European Union;

"Downstream Partners" means the Grant Recipient's partners, consultants and subcontractors involved in the delivery of the Funded Activities

**"DPA"** means the Data Protection Act 2018 and any subordinate legislation made under that Act from time to time together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by the relevant government department concerning this legislation;

"EIR" means the Environmental Information Regulations 2014;

"Eligible Expenditure" means expenditure in relation to the Funded Activities that complies in all respects with the eligibility rules set out in Annex 4 (Eligible Expenditure);

**"Exit Plan"** means the plan required allowing for the cessation or transfer of the Funded Activities as set out at clause 10:

"Financial Year" means from 1 April to 31 March;

**"Financial Irregularity"** includes (but is not limited to) potential fraud or other impropriety, mismanagement, and the use of grant for any purpose other than those stipulated in this Agreement

**"Fixed Assets"** means any Asset which consists of land, buildings, plant and equipment acquired, developed, enhanced, constructed or owned by the Grant Recipient in connection with the Funded Activities:

**"FOIA"** means the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and any subordinate legislation made under that Act from time to time together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by the relevant government department concerning this legislation;

**"Funded Activities"** means the activities set out in Annex 2 (Funded Activities) and Annex 1 (Grant Offer Letter);

"Funding Period" means the period for which the Grant is awarded starting on the Commencement Date and ending on 31 March 2022;

**"GDPR"** means Regulation 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data, and repealing Directive 95/46/EC (General Data Protection Regulation);

"Grant" means the sum or sums of money in GBP to be provided to the Grant Recipient in accordance with this Agreement;

"Grant Manager" means the individual who has been nominated by the Authority to be the single point of contact for the Grant Recipient in relation to the Grant;

"Grant Offer Letter" means the grant offer letter issued by the Authority to the Recipient set out in Annex 1 (Grant Offer Letter);

"HRA" means the Human Rights Act 1998 and any subordinate legislation made under that Act from time to time together with any guidance or codes of practice issued by the relevant government department concerning this legislation;

"IATI Standard" means the International Aid Transparency Initiative data standard;

"Ineligible Expenditure" means expenditure which is not Eligible Expenditure;

"Information Acts" means the DPA, GDPR, FOIA and the EIR, as amended from time to time;

"Intellectual Property Rights" or "IPRs" means copyright, rights related to or affording protection similar to copyright, rights in databases, patents and rights in inventions semi-conductor topography rights, trade and service marks, rights in Internet domain names and website addresses and other rights in trade names, designs, know-how, trade secrets and other rights in Confidential Information and any modifications, amendments, updates and new releases of the same and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection which subsist or will subsist now or in the future in any part of the world;

"Instalment Period" means the period referred to in Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule):

"KPIs" means the key performance indicators set out in Annex 6 (Agreed Outputs);

**"Law"** mean any applicable Act of Parliament, subordinate legislation within the meaning of section 21(1) of the Interpretation Act 1978, exercise of the royal prerogative, enforceable community right within the meaning of section 2 of the European Communities Act 1972, rule of common law, regulatory policy, guidance or industry code, judgment of a relevant court of law, or directives or statute, bye-law, regulation, order, regulatory policy, guidance or industry code, rule of court or directives or requirements of any regulatory body, delegated or subordinate legislation:

"Losses" means all losses, liabilities, damages, costs, expenses (including legal fees), disbursements, costs of investigation, litigation, settlement, judgment, interest and penalties

whether arising in contract, tort (including negligence), breach of statutory duty, misrepresentation or otherwise;

"Material Breach" means a breach of the Agreement (including an anticipatory breach) which is not minimal or trivial in its consequences;

**"Maximum Sum"** means the maximum amount of the Grant to be provided by the Authority to the Grant Recipient for the Funded Activities;

**"ODA"** means Official Development Assistance, including ODA administrative costs, as defined by the OECD from time to time;

"OECD" means the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development;

"The Open Government Licence or "OGL" means the set of terms and conditions under which information providers in the public sector can license the use and re-use of their information;

"Party" means the Authority or Grant Recipient;

"Personal Data" has the meaning given to it in the Information Acts;

"Programme" means the program named: "A Market Shaping Framework for AMR Innovations for Low- and Middle-Income Countries"

"Pre-existing IPR" means all Intellectual Property Rights vested in or licensed to the Parties prior to the Commencement Date and/or created by the Parties independently of the Funded Activities;

"Procurement Regulations" means the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, Concession Contracts Regulations 2016, Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016 and Defence and Security Public Contracts Regulations 2011;

# " Prohibited Act" means:

- (a) directly or indirectly offering, giving or agreeing to give to any servant of the Authority or the Crown any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for:
  - (i) doing or not doing (or for having done or not having done) any act in relation to the obtaining or performance of this Agreement; or
  - (ii) showing or not showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation to this Agreement;
- (b) committing any offence:
  - (i) under the Bribery Act;
  - (ii) under legislation creating offences in respect of fraudulent acts; or
  - (iii) at common law in respect of fraudulent acts in relation to this Agreement; or
- (c) defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the Authority or the Crown;

"Public Accounts Committee" the select committee of the British House of Commons which is responsible for overseeing government expenditures;

"Representatives" means any of the Parties' duly authorised directors, employees, officers, agents, professional advisors and consultants;

"Remedial Action Plan" means the agreed remedial plan of action developed by the Grant Recipient and agreed by the Authority to remedy a KPI failure, as set out in clause 32.2.2;

"State Aid Law" means the law embodied in Article 107 - 109 of section 2, Title VII of the Common Rules on Competition, Taxation and Approximation of Laws - Consolidated Versions of the Treaty on European Union and the Treaty for the Functioning of the European Union or any Domestic Law which replaces State Aid Law following the UK's exit from the European Union;

"Terms and Conditions" means the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement and upon which the Grant is payable;

## "Unspent Monies" means any monies:

- (a) paid to the Grant Recipient which remain unspent and uncommitted at the end of an Instalment Period; or
- (b) remain unspent and uncommitted at the end of the Financial Year in which the Instalment Period occurs:

"VAT" mean value added tax chargeable in the United Kingdom;

**"Working Day"** means any day from Monday to Friday (inclusive) which is not Christmas Day, Good Friday or a statutory bank holiday in Engla nd.

- 2.2. In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
  - 2.2.1. the singular includes the plural and vice versa;
  - 2.2.2. reference to a gender includes the other gender and the neuter;
  - 2.2.3. references to a person include an individual, company, body corporate, corporation, unincorporated association, firm, partnership or other legal entity or Crown Bo dy;
  - 2.2.4. a reference to any Law includes a reference to that Law as amended, extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time;
  - 2.2.5. the words "including", "other", "in particular", "for example" and similar words will not limit the generality of the preceding words and will be construed as if they were immediately followed by the words "without limitation";
  - 2.2.6. references to "writing" include typing, printing, lithography, photography, display on a screen, electronic and facsimile transmission and other modes of representing or reproducing words in a visible form, and expressions referring to writing will be construed accordingly;
  - 2.2.7. references to "representations" will be construed as references to present facts, to "warranties" as references to present and future facts and to "undertakings" as references to obligations under this Agreement;

- 2.2.8. references to "Clauses" and "Annexes" are, unless otherwise provided, references to the clauses and annexes of this Agreement and references in any Annex to parts, paragraphs and tables are, unless otherwise provided, references to the parts, paragraphs and tables of the Annex in which these references appear; and
- 2.2.9. the headings in this Agreement are for ease of reference only and will not affect the interpretation or construction of this Agreement.

#### 3. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF GRANT

- 3.1. The Parties acknowledge and agree that nothing in this Agreement or the provision of the Grant gives or is intended to give rise to contractual relations.
- 3.2. The Grant Recipient shall use the Grant solely for the delivery of the Funded Activities and must not, without the prior written consent of the Authority, make any material changes to the Funded Activities.
- 3.3. The Authority may at its entire discretion vary the Grant as a result of changes to the Funded Activities or for any other reason. Any variation made under this clause 3.3 will not take effect until notified by the Authority to the Grant Recipient in writing
- 3.4. The Grant must not be used to support activity which influences or attempts to influence Parliament, Government or political parties, to propagate a religion or belief, or to influence the awarding or renewal of contracts or grants, or to influence legislative or regulatory action.
- 3.5. The Grant must be used to promote the agreed project objectives with Official Development Assistance (ODA) eligible countries as outlined in the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) Development Co-Operation Directorate list, in accordance with clause 27.
- 3.6. The Authority makes no commitment to renewing or continuing funding after the term of this Agreement and will not be liable for any additional cost incurred by the Grant Recipient either during or after the Funding Period.
- 3.7. The Grant Recipient will notify the Authority in advance of its intention to apply or of its successful application for any co-funding or additional funding for the Programme. The Grant Recipient will notify the Authority of any co-funding or additional funding within 5 Working Days of the execution of an agreement to provide co-funding or additional funding for the Programme.
- 3.8. Where, before or during the Funding Period, the Grant Recipient receives any funding from any other source or person towards the Funded Activities that was not already committed to the Grant Recipient and disclosed to the Authority, the Authority may, where that funding duplicates funding of the Grant, require repayment of the Grant (up to the amount of duplicate funding received) in accordance with clause 21.
- 3.9. The Grant Recipient agrees and accepts that it will not apply for duplicate funding in respect of any part of the Grant for the Funded Activities or any related administration costs that the

- Authority has provided under this Agreement and that it may be prosecuted for fraud should it dishonestly and intentionally make such an application to the Authority.
- 3.10. Unless terminated in accordance with clause 32, the terms of this Agreement shall apply from the Commencement Date until the end of the Funding Period or for so long as any Grant remains unspent by the Grant Recipient, whichever is longer.

#### 4. PAYMENT OF GRANT

- 4.1. Subject to clause 4.2, 4.14 and 4.11, the Authority shall pay the Grant to the Grant Recipient in accordance with Annex 3 {Payment and Reporting Schedule}.
- 4.2. The Grant will be paid only in respect of Eligible Expenditure incurred by the Grant Recipient to deliver the Funded Activities and represents the Maximum Sum the Authority will pay to the Grant Recipient under this Agreement with the actual amount paid to the Grant Recipient in accordance with Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule).
- 4.3. The amount of the Grant shall not be increased in the event of any overspend by the Grant Recipient in its delivery of the Funded Activit ies.
- 4.4. The Grant Recipients shall submit electronically using the form provided in Annex 5 (Grant Claim Form) a valid grant claim by the 10<sup>th</sup> Working Day of the month following the end of the Instalment Period for which the Grant claim is made. The Grant claim shall be submitted together with a copy of Annex 4 (Eligible Expenditure) and any other documentation as prescribed by the Authority.
- 4.5. In line with UK Government financial regulations, the Authority will not make payments in advance of need, but payments will be made in advance in order to allow the Grant Recipient to commence Funded Activities. Subsequent payments will be released on receipt of confirmation that the Grant already disbursed has been spent and provided the Funded Activities have been delivered during the previous period.
- 4.6. Should any interest be earned on DHSC contributions, the Grant Recipient will channel this back into the programme and off -set against future payment requests to the Authority. The Authority is providing the Grant with no expectation of a direct service being supplied in return and therefore considers payments made in pursuit of the Programme to be outside the scope of VAT.
- 4.7. Pursuant to the timing set out in clause 4.3, the timing and scheduling of payments may be amended by the Partners dependent on actual expenditure and need. The Partners will jointly decide any changes to the payment schedule.
- 4.8. Time for payment of the Grant claim will not be of the essence. The Authority will have no liability to the Grant Recipient for any Losses caused by a delay in the payment of a Grant claim howsoever arising.
- 4.9. The Authority reserves the right not to pay any Grant claims which are not submitted within the period set out in clause **Error! Reference source not found..** Incomplete and/or incorrect Grant claims, which include Grant claims without the full supporting documentat ion, will be returned unpaid.

- 4.10. The Grant Recipient shall notify the Authority promptly if at any time it becomes aware that it is unable to make a Grant claim in accordance with clause 4.3.
- 4.11. The Grant Recipient shall promptly notify and repay to the Authority any money incorrectly paid to it either as a result of an administrative error or otherwise. This includes (without limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has been paid or where the Grant has been paid in error before the Grant Recipient has complied with all conditions attaching to the Grant.
- 4.12. Where the Grant Recipient enters into a contract with a third party in connection with the Funded Activities the Grant Recipient will remain responsible for settling payment in respect of those invoices. Third party invoices must not be submitted to the Authority for payment.
- 4.13. Onward payment of the Grant and the use of sub-contractors (subject to the Authority's prior written approval), shall not relieve the Grant Recipient of any of its obligations under this Agreement, including any obligation to repay the Grant.
- 4.14. The Authority will not make the first payment of the Grant and/or any subsequent payment of the Grant unless, or until the Authority is satisfied that:
  - 4.14.1. such Grant payment will be used for Eligible Expenditure; and
  - 4.14.2. any previous Grant payments have been used for the Funded Activities or, where there are Unspent Monies, have been repaid to the Authority in accordance with clause 21.2.

## 5. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

- 5.1. The Grant Recipient must have a sound administration and audit process, including internal financial controls to safeguard against fraud, theft or any other impropriety or mismanagement in connection with the administration of the Grant, and will require that the internal/external auditors report on the adequacy or otherwise of that system. All cases of fraud, theft, impropriety or mismanagement (whether proven or suspected) relating to the Funded Activities must be notified to the Authority as soon as they are identified. The Authority may then request their referral (which the Grant Recipient is obliged to carry out)
- 5.2. The Grant Recipient must be able to demonstrate that the systems of financial and manpower control, management and organisation will enable the Grant Recipient to meet the Funded Activities and objectives of this Agreement.
- 5.3. The Grant Recipient will not transfer, assign, novate or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part of the Grant or this Agreement or any rights under it, to another organisation or individual[, unless the Grant Recipient has first entered into an agree ment, authorised by the Authority, requiring the Grant Recipient to work with another organisation in delivering the Funded Activities].
- 5.4. The Grant Recipient shall provide financial reports as outlined in Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule).

#### 6. ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

- 6.1. The Grant Recipient agrees that the Authority shall be entitled to audit the delivery and performance of the Funded Activity and/or request access to, or a report from, the Grant Recipient's auditors on its audited account s. Any such reports must be capable of being relied upon by the Authority, either by having the Authority as an express addressee, or by express statements of the fact t herein. The Authority shall also be entitled to full access to the Grant Recipient's records on an open-book basis during the Funding Period or such other period as the Authority may require.
- 6.2. The Grant Recipient will comply with {and facilitate the Authority's compliance with) all statutory requirements as regards accounts, audit or examination of accounts, annual reports and annual returns applicable to itself and the Authority.
- 6.3. The Grant Recipient will permit {and comply with) any surveys of management controls and systems, including internal audit reviews, as may be required by the Authority.
- 6.4. The Grant Recipient must present Annex 3 {Payment and Reporting Schedule) and Annex 4 {Eligible Expenditure) to their external auditors/accountants for certification. The external auditors/accountants' report should state whether, in their opinion, the grant paid to the Grant Recipient, was applied in accordance with the Agreement.
- 6.5. The Grant Recipient's chief executive (or equivalent) should ensure that the systems governing the Grant are subject to independent review.
- 6.6. The systems in place to govern the Grant should be appropriate to the size of Grant Recipient organisation, the level of Grant, risk to the public funds provided and cost of the review. These arrangements may be reviewed by the Authority in line with HM Treasury's Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
- 6.7. The Grant Recipient {and any person acting on behalf of the same) will at the request of the Authority permit (a) the Comptroller and Auditor General or appointed representatives; and {b) the Authority or its Representatives access at all reasonable times to all documents {including computerised documents and data) and other information as are connected to the Grant payable under this Agreement for the purpose of the Funded Activities.
- 6.8. The documents, data and information referred to in clause 6.7 are such which any internal auditors, external auditors, the Authority or the Comptroller and Auditor General or any department or other public body may reasonably require for the purposes of audit or for carrying out examinations into the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which the Grant Recipient has used the Grant. In particular, the Grant Recipient will retain such information as would be necessary to provide assurance that the Grant Recipient delivered the minimum requirements of the Funded Activities.
- 6.9. Clauses 6.7 and 6.8 do not constitute a requirement for the examination, certification or inspection of the accounts of the Grant Recipient or its partners by the Comptroller and Auditor General under section 6(3) of the National Audit Act 1983. The Comptroller and Auditor General will seek access in a measured manner to minimise any burden on the Grant Recipient and will avoid duplication of effort by seeking and sharing information with the Audit Commission, Wales Audit Office or Audit Scotland as appropriate.

- 6.10. Where this Agreement is for a term longer than one Financial Year, the Grant Recipient must provide the following details to the Authority before the end of each Financial Year:
  - 6.10.1. a schedule of the Funded Activities and estimates of income and expenditure for the next Financial Year, together with forecast outturns for the current year;
  - 6.10.2. a statement setting out the total Grant agreed for the year;
  - 6.10.3. details of any additional funding for delivery of the Funded Activities, other than the Grant, with full details of how it is to be spent;
  - 6.10.4. the level of balances held by the Grant Recipient at the end of the Financial Year.
- 6.11. The Grant Recipient will provide revised forecasts of income and expenditure:
  - 6.11.1. when these forecasts increase or decrease by more than 15% of the original expenditure forecasts; and/or
  - 6.11.2. alongside one finance report 45 days after the close of the grant period; and/or
  - 6.11.3. at the request of the Authority.
- 6.12. The Grant Recipient will keep separate, accurate and up-to-date accounts and records of the receipt and expenditure of the Grant received from the Authority and any income generated from the Funded Activities.
- 6.13. The Grant will be shown in the Grant Recipient's separate account as a restricted fund and will not be included or mixed with the Grant Recipient's general funds or other monies.
- 6.14. The Grant Recipient will keep all original accounting records relating to the Funded Activities, including invoices, receipts, VAT records, accounts and any other relevant documents relating to the expenditure of the Grant for a period of at least six years following receipt of any portion of the Grant to which they relate.
- 6.15. Where the Grant allows for capital spend, the Grant Recipient must keep a register of fixed assets, including all land and building acquired or improved with the Grant.
- 6.16. Upon request by the Authority, the Grant Recipient will provide further information, explanations and documents as the Authority may reasonably require, in order for the Authority to establish that the Grant has been used properly in accordance with this Agreemenwithin 10 Working Days and will provide relevant financial information within 20 Working Days, unless otherwise agreed by the Authority.
- 6.17. Where the Grant Recipient is a company registered at Companies House, the Grant Recipient must file their annual return and accounts by the dates specified by Companies House.
- 6.18. Where the Grant Recipient is a registered charity, the Grant Recipient must file their charity annual return by the date specified by the Charity Commissioner.
- 6.19. The Grant Recipient must provide the Authority with copies of their annual return, accounts and charity annual return (as applicable) within five days of filing them at Companies House and/or the Charity Commissioner. Without prejudice to the Authority's other rights, if the Grant Recipient fails to comply with clauses 6.17 and/or 6.18 the Authority suspend payment of the Grant at the Authority's discretion.

#### 7. MONITORING AND REPORTING

- 7.1. The Grant Recipient shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the Funded Activity throughout the Funding Period to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Funded Activity are met and that the Terms and Conditions of this Agreement are being adhered to.
- 7.2. The Grant Recipient must provide the Authority with all reasonable assistance and co- operation in relation to any ad-hoc information requests made by the Authority in relation to the Funded Activities. Without prejudice to these obligations, the Grant Recipient must also provide to the Authority within two weeks of the anniversary of this Agreement an annual report on:
  - 7.2.I. the progress made towards achieving the agreed KPIs/outputs and the defined longer term outcomes set out in Annex 6 (Agreed Outputs) and where possible will quantify what has been achieved by reference to the Funded Activities' targets; and
  - 7.2.2. details of any Assets either acquired or improved using the Grant.
- 7.3. Where the Grant Recipient has obtained funding from a third party for its delivery of part of the Funded Activities, the Grant Recipient will include the amount of such funding in its financial reports together with details of what that funding has been used for.
- 7.4. The Grant Recipient will permit any person authorised by the Authority such reasonable access to its employees, agents, premises, facilities and records, for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Grant Recipient's fulfilment of the conditions of this Agreement and will, if so required, provide appropriate oral or written explanations from such employees or agents as required during the Funding Period and for so long as any portion of the Grant remains unspent.
- 7.5. The Grant Recipient will notify the Authority as soon as reasonably practicable of:
  - 7.5.l. any financial, administrative, managerial difficulties that may hinder or prevent the Grant Recipient from fulfilling its obligations under the Agreement;
  - 7.5.2. any actual or potential Material Breach;
  - 7.5.3. actual or potential material variations to the Eligible Expenditure agreed in accordance with the Grant Offer Letter or Annex 4 (Eligible Expenditure); and
  - 7.5.4. any change in the information on costs (whether actual or estimated) of carrying out the Funded Activities or any event which materially affects the continued accuracy of such information.
- 7.6. The Grant Recipient will represent and undertake (and repeat such representations on delivery) that the reports and information it gives pursuant to this clause 7 are accurate and that it has diligently made full and proper enquiry of the matter pertaining to the reports and information given.
- 7.7. The Grant will be reviewed through progress reports produced by the Grant Recipient in line with the reporting schedule in Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule). This report will take into account the Grant Recipient's delivery (during the Funding Period) of the Funded Activities against the KPIs and/or agreed outputs set out in Annex 6 (Agreed Outputs). As part of the end of grant review the Authority will have regard to the reports produced by the Grant Recipient in accordance with clause 6.1.

#### 8. ANNUAL GRANT REVIEW

- 8.1. The Grant will be reviewed annually and will take into account the Grant Recipient's delivery (during the Funding Period) of the Funded Activities against the KPIs and/or agreed outputs set out in Annex 5 (Agreed Outputs). As part of the annual review the Authority will have regard to the reports produced by the Grant Recipient in accordance with clause 6.1.
- 8.2. Each annual review may result in the Authority making a recommendation that:
  - 8.2.I. the Funded Activities and Agreement continue in line with existing plans;
  - 8.2.2. there should be an increase or decrease in the Grant for the subsequent financial year;
  - 8.2.3. the KPIs should be re-defined and agreed;
  - 8.2.4. the Authority should recover unspent or surplus Grant;
  - 8.2.5. the Agreement should be t erminated .
- 8.3. The Grant Recipient may make representations to the Authority regarding any recommendations made in accordance with clause 8.2. The Authority is not however obliged to take such representations into account when making its recommendation and any recommendation will be final and at the Authority's absolute discretion.
- 8.4. The Grant Recipient is required to provide the following after the Authority's financial year has ended (31 March) for any year (1 April 31 March) in which they receive grant funding:
  - 8.4.l. an unaudited/ not independently examined statement of income and expenditure by 30th April;
  - 8.4.2. a signed declaration from the grant recipient Finance Director or equivalent that all expenditure was eligible in line with Annex 4 by 30th April; and
  - 8.4.3. a grant report for which sets out activity achieved against the projects' aims in line with the agreed reporting schedule outlined in Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule).

#### 9. DELIVERY CHAIN AND RISK MAPPING

9.1. Within 30 days of the Commencement Date the Grant Recipient shall produce and then for the remainder of the Funding Period maintain an up to date and accurate Delivery Chain Map and shall provide the Authority with the Delivery Chain Map in line with the reporting schedule in Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule), and within 5 Working Days of a request.

#### 10. EXIT PLAN

- 10.I. The Grant Recipient will prepare an Exit Plan within the first three months of the signing of the Grant Offer Letter or within a timescale proportionate to the Funding Period, whichever is shorter, to allow the cessation or seamless transfer of the Funded Activities.
- 10.2. As part of the Exit Plan, the Authority will jointly agree a plan for communicating with all partners and employees during the exit period, in a way that avoids any detrimental impact on the respective parties' businesses resulting from the closure or transfer of the Grant, and shares responsibilities between the respective parties.

#### 11. PROCUREMENT LAW, STATE AID AND VALUE FOR MONEY

- 11.I. The Grant Recipient shall adopt such policies and procedures that are required in order to ensure that value for money has been obtained in any procurement of goods or services funded by the Grant.
- 11.2. Where the Grant Recipient is a "contracting authority" within the meaning of the Procurement Regulations the Grant Recipient warrants that it will comply, as necessary, with the applicable Procurement Regulations when procuring goods and services in connection with the Agreement and the Authority shall not be liable for the Grant Recipient's failure to comply with its obligations under the Procurement Regulations.
- 11.3. Where the Grant Recipient reasonably considers that there is an objective justification for not complying with Procurement Regulations and seeks to rely on such a justification, it will seek prior written approval from the Authority, setting out the reasons for non-compliance in a structured business case.
- 11.4. The Grant Recipient will take all reasonable steps to ensure that where any awards are made from the Funded Activities those awards are compatible with State Aid Law including requesting such documentation from the award recipients as is necessary to ensure compliance with State Aid Law.
- 11.5. The Grant Recipient will maintain appropriate records of compliance with State Aid Law and will take all reasonable steps to assist the Authority to comply with State Aid Law requirements and respond to any investigation(s) instigated by the European Commission (or its Domestic Successor) into Funded Activities or any equivalent regulatory body as the case maybe.
- 11.6. Where the Authority determines that a Grant to the Grant Recipient would constitute State Aid, the Authority and the Grant Recipient acknowledge that any such Grant will only be payable if:
  - 11.6.l. it is paid under the 'de minimis' exemption; and
  - 11.6.2. the Grant Recipient has not received funding from a public body in the three years prior to the date of the Grant that would aggregate with the Grant to exceed the permitted threshold.
- 11.7. The Grant Recipient shall inform the Authority immediately if it receives or intends to receive any public funding within three years from the date of the final payment of this Grant which will or may constitute further State Aid.
- 11.8. Notwithstanding the other provisions in this Agreement, the Grant Recipient shall immediately repay any funding which, in the Authority's absolute discretion, may constitute unlawful State Aid.

# 12. ASSETS AND INVENTORY

12.I. The Authority considers any equipment and/or supplies purchased in part or fully from Grant funds as project Fixed Assets if they have a useful life of more than one year; and either (1) the purchase price or development cost of the asset is in excess of £500 or equivalent in local currency; or (2) is a group of lower value items (e.g. pharmaceutical products, food, relief

- packs, etc.) where the combined value is in excess of £500 or equivalent in local currency; or (3) can be considered an attractive item regardless of cost (e.g. cameras, laptops, tablets, satellite phones, vehicles, etc.).
- 12.2 . The Authority will retain ultimate ownership of Assets, specifically project assets, financial assets and information asset s, until ownership transfer or asset disposal is otherwise approved in writing by the Authority normally at the end of this Arrangement. The Grant Recipient should propose an appropriate disposal schedule to the Authority in writing no later than 20 Working Days before the project end date.
- 12.3. The Grant Recipient will ensure that a physical check of all assets takes place on at least an annual basis, establish and maintain an inventory of all Assets and provide it to the Authority in line with Annex 3 (Payment and Reporting Schedule), and within 10 Working Days of being requested to do so. Where possible, the Grant Recipient should undertake these checks directly.
- 12.4. The Grant Recipient will be accountable for the appropriate use and control of Assets, in line with this Agreement.
- 12.5. The Grant Recipient will manage the risk of assets being lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed under its own policies and procedures. The Authority generally expects the Grant Recipient to cover the cost of repairing or replacing lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed assets and should make a risk-based decision on how best to do this. If the Grant Recipient decides to take out project specific commercial insurance to cover lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed assets, Authority funds cannot be used to fund the premiums unless, by exception, explicitly approved in writing in advance.

#### 13. DISPOSAL OF ASSETS, CHANGE OF USE AND ASSIGNMENT

- 13.1. The Grant Recipient must not sell any Assets that have been totally or partly bought, restored, conserved (maintained or protected from damage) or improved with the Grant unless:
  - 13.1.1. the Asset can be sold for its full current market value; and
  - 13.1.2. prior permission has been obtained from the Authority in writing.
- 13.2. The Grant Recipient must not sell any Asset below market value without prior written permission from the Aut hority.
- 13.3. Any proceeds from the Disposal of any Asset will be surrendered to the Authority in full, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Authority.

## 14. GRANT RECIPIENT PERSONNEL

14.1. The Grant Recipient will appoint staff with appropriate qualifications and experience to perform the Funded Act ivities .

#### 15. INSURANCE

- 15.1. The Grant Recipient will during the term of the Agreement and for 6 years after termination or expiry of this Agreement, ensure that it has and maintains, at all times adequate insurance with an insurer of good repute to cover claims under this Agreement or any other claims or demands which may be brought or made against it by any person suffering any injury damage or loss in connection with this Agreement.
- 15.2. The Grant Recipient will upon request produce to the Authority its policy or policies of insurance or where this is not possible, a certificate of insurance issued by the Grant Recipient's insurance brokers confirming the insurances are in full force and effect together with confirmation that the relevant premiums have been paid.
- 15.3. Where the Grant Recipient receives more than 25 per cent of the Grant Recipient's total income from public funds, the Grant Recipient will notify the Aut hority. The Authority will review the nature of the control of Grant Recipient's organisation to determine any resulting requirement for reclassification which may in turn change the insurance requirements under the Agreement
- 15.4. The Authority accepts no liability for any consequences, whether direct or indirect, that may come about from the Grant Recipient running the Funded Activities, the use of the Grant or from withdrawal of the Grant. The Grant Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, its employees, agents, officers or sub-contractors with respect to all Losses arising from or incurred by reason of the actions and/or omissions of the Grant Recipient in relation to the Funded Activities, the non-fulfilment of obligations of the Grant Recipient under this Agreement or its obligations to third parties.
- 15.5. Subject to clause 15.4, the Authority's liability under this Agreement is limited to the amount of the Grant.

## 16. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND FINANCIAL OR OTHER IRREGULARITIES

- 16.1. The Grant Recipient must have and will keep in place formal procedures that require the Grant Recipient and its Representatives to declare any personal or financial interest in any matter concerning the Funded Activities and if a conflict of interest is identified the individual is to be excluded from any discussion or decision -making relating to the matter conce rned.
- 16.2. The Grant Recipient must inform the Authority immediately if there are any grounds for suspecting Financial Irregularity in the use of the Grant, explain what steps are being taken to investigate the Financial Irregularity and keep the Authority informed about the progress of the investigation.
- 16.3. Each Party will immediately and without undue delay inform the other Party of any event which interferes or threatens to materially interfere with the successful implementation of the projects, programmes and activities, including credible suspicion of and actual instances of Financial Irregularity.
- 16.4. The Parties have a zero tolerance approach towards Financial Irregularity that may lead to the misuse of funds and agree in principle to recover such funds. The Grant Recipient will take timely and appropriate action to investigate credible allegations of Financial Irregularity, immediately inform the Authority of the steps being taken to investigate the suspicion, and

- keep the Authority informed about the progress of the investigation. Each Party will fully cooperate with investigations into such events, whether led by the Grant Recipient or the Authority.
- 16.5. Allegations of Financial Irregularity should be reported in the first instance to the Authority's Anti-Fraud Unit at fraudenquiries@dhsc.gov.uk.
- 16.6 . In the event of any credible indications that UK funds may have been subject to fraud or Financial Irregularity, the Parties, may, at any time during the period of this Agreement and up to five years after the end of the Programme, arrange for additional investigations, on-the spot checks and/or inspections to be carried out. These may be carried out by the Parties, or any of its duly authorised representatives.
- 16.7. Where information is requested by the Authority as part of an investigation into fraud or Financial Irregularity the Grant Recipient cannot request any remuneration or benefits for any labour associated with fulfilling that request unless agreed in writing between the Parti es.
- 16.8 . The Parties reserve the ability to recover funds that have been subject to proven fraud and will work together to do so. Where Financial Irregularity is alleged, the Authority reserves the ability to suspend or terminate funding with immediate effect, in preference to the standard notice period and irrespective of any contractual requirements, and to seek civil or criminal sanctions where appropriate.

## 17. PREVENTION OF BRIBERY

- 17.I. The Grant Recipient:
  - 17.I.I. shall not, and shall procure that its staff, agents, consultants and su b-cont ractors shall not, in connection with this Agreement, commit a Prohibited Act;
  - 17.1.2 . shall not engage in any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute an offence under sections 1, 2 or 6 of the Bribery Act 2010 if such activity, practice or conduct has been carried out in the UK;
  - 17.1.3. shall comply with the Authority's anti-bribery policies, as updated from time to time and notified to the Grant Recipient;
  - 17.1.4. shall have and shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement its own policies and procedures, including adequate procedures under the Bribery Act 2010, to ensure compliance with clauses 17.1.1, 17.1.2 and 17.1.3;
  - 17.1.5. shall promptly report to the Authority any request or demand for any undue financial or other advantage of any kind received by the Grant Recipient in connection with the Funded Activity;
  - 17.1.6. shall immediately notify the Authority in writing if a foreign public official becomes an officer or employee of the Grant Recipient or acquires a direct or indirect interest in the Grant Recipient, and the Grant Recipient warrants that it has no foreign public officials as officers, employees or direct or indirect owners at the date of this Agreement;

- 17.1.7. shall, if requested, provide the Authority with any reasonable assistance, at the Authority's reasonable cost, to enable the Authority to perform any activity required by any relevant government or agency in any relevant jurisdiction for the purpose of compliance with the Bribery Act;
- 17.1.8. within one (1) month of the Commencement Date, and annually thereafter, certify to the Authority in writing (such certification to be signed by an officer of the Grant Recipient) compliance with this clause 17Error! Reference source not found. by the Grant Recipient and all persons associated with it or other persons who are supplying goods or services in connection with this Agreement. The Grant Recipient shall provide such supporting evidence of compliance as the Authority may reasonably request.
- 17.2. For the purpose of this clause 17, the meaning of adequate procedures and foreign public official and whether a person is associated with another person shall be determined in accordance with section 7(2) of the Bribery Act 2010 (and any guidance issued under section 9 of that Act), sections 6(5) and 6(6) of that Act and section 8 of that Act respectively. For the purpose of this clause17, a person associated with the Grant Recipient includes any agent, delegate or subcontractor of the Agent.

#### 18. TERRORISM

18.1. Consistent with numerous United Nations Security Council resolutions including S/RES/1269 {1999), S/RES/1368 {2001) and S/RES/1373 {2001), both the Authority and the Grant Recipient are firmly committed to the international fight against terrorism, and in part icular, against the financing of t er rorism. It is the policy of the Parties to seek to ensure that none of its funds are used, directly or indirectly, to provide support to individuals or entities associated with terrorism. In accordance with this policy, the Grant Recipient undertakes to use best efforts to ensure that none of the Grant provided under this Agreement are used to provide support to individuals or entities associated with terrorism.

# 19. SAFEGUARDING FOR THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL EXPLOITATION, ABUSE AND HARASSMENT

- 19.1. The Partner will take all reasonable steps to prevent the sexual exploitation, abuse and harassment of any person linked to the delivery of this Agreement by both its employees and any Downstream Partner.
- 19.2. The Participants have a zero tolerance approach towards sexual exploitation, abuse and harassment. The Partner the will immediately contact Authority at ODAsafeguardingconcerns@dhsc.gov.uk to report any credible suspicions of, or actual incidents of sexual exploit at ion, abuse or harassment related to this Agreement. The Partner should assess credibility based on the source of the allegation, the content, and the level of detail or evidence provided. All sexual activity with children (persons under the age of 18) is prohibited, regardless of the age of majority, or age of consent locally.
- 19.3. The Partner should also report any credible suspicions of, or actual incidents that are not directly related to this Agreement but would be of significant impact to their partnership with DHSC or the reputation of DHSC or UK aid. For example, events that affect the governance or culture of the Partner, such as those related to senior management, must be reported.

19.4. Both Participants will fully co-operate with investigations into such events, whether led by DHSC or any of its duly authorised representatives or agents, or the Partner.

# 20. SPENDING CONTROLS - MARKETING, ADVERTISING, COMMUNICATIONS AND CONSULTANCY

- 20.1. As part of the government's efficiency and reform programme, public funding for marketing, advertising, communications and consultancy is closely cont rolled. The Grant Recipient must seek permission from the Authority prior to any proposed expenditure in these areas, either in connection with, or using the Grant, under this Agreement . A complete list of the controlled activities can be found at <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cabinet-office-controls">https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cabinet-office-controls</a>.
- 20.2. The Grant Recipient should provide evidence that any marketing, advertising, communications and consultancy expenditure carried out in connection with, or using the Grant will deliver measurable outcomes that meet government objectives and can secure value for money.

## 21. WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING OR REPAYMENT OF GRANT

- 21.1. Without prejudice to the Authority's other rights and remedies, the Authority may withhold or suspend payment of the Grant and/or require the Grant Recipient to repay any Unspent Monies if any of the events set out in clause 32 arise.
- 21.2. The Grant Recipient agrees and accepts that it may become ineligible for grant support and be required to repay any Grant if it engages in tax evasion or aggressive tax avoidance, in the opinion of HMRC.
- 21.3. The Grant Recipient may not retain any portion of the Grant that has not been used by the end of the Financial Year in the Funding Period without the Authority's written permission.
- 21.4. Unspent Monies, as calculated by the Authority, must be repaid to the Authority within 20 Working Days of a request for repayment and must not be carried forward for use in the following Financial Year.
- 21.5. Wherever under this Agreement any sum of money is recoverable from or payable by the Grant Recipient (including any sum that the Grant Recipient is liable to pay to the Authority in respect of a Breach of this Agreement), the Authority may unilaterally deduct that sum from any sum then due, or which at any later time may become due to the Grant Recipient under this Agreement or under any other agreement or contract with the Authority.

## 22. LOSSES, GIFTS AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS

- 22.1. In connection with this Agreement, the Grant Recipient must obtain prior written consent from the Authority before:
  - 22.1.1. writing off any debts or liabilities;
  - 22.1.2. offering to make any special payments; and
  - 22.1.3. giving any gifts.

22.2. The Grant Recipient will keep a record of all gifts, both given and received, in connection with the Grant or any Funded Activity.

#### 23. BORROWING

- 23.1. The Grant Recipient must obtain prior written consent from the Authority before:
  - 23.1.1. borrowing or lending money from any source;
  - 23.1.2. charging or agreeing any security over any Asset; and/or
  - 23.1.3. giving any guarantee, indemnities or letters of comfort,

that relate to any of the conditions of the Agreement, or have any impact on the Grant Recipient's ability to deliver the Funded Activities set out in the Agreement.

#### 24. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND PUBLIC STATEMENTS

- 24.1. The Grant Recipient will acknowledge the Grant in its annual report and accounts; including an acknowledgement of the Authority as the source of the Grant and will show the Grant Recipient's related expenditure as a restricted fund under the Funded Activities in the Grant Recipient's annual accounts.
- 24.2. The Grant Recipient will not publish any official documents referring to the Funded Activities or the Authority without the prior written agreement of the Authority, except for those referred to in clause 24.1 and 28.5.
- 24.3. The Grant Recipient will acknowledge the support of the Authority in any materials that refer to the Fund Activities and in any written or spoken public presentations about the Funded Activities. Such acknowledgements will include a name and logo agreed by the Authority, using the templates provided by the Authority.
- 24.4. Subject to clause 24.2 any publicity material for the Funded Activities must refer to the programme under which the Grant was awarded, the Authority and UK aid.
  - DHSC's contribution shall be acknowledged as 'Global AMR Innovation Fund part of UK Department of Health and Social Care' listed as a funder for the 2021/22 financial year. In select circumstances, when notified in writing by DHSC, contribution shall be acknowledged as 'UK government' or 'funded by UK ai d'. The Grant Recipient will use both the UK Aid logo (where appropriate and when agreed in writing by DHSC) and the GAMRIF logo in all communications in writing with the public or third parties about the Funded Activities, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties. Both Parties will use best efforts to work together to communicate the Funded Activities in accordance with the DHSC communications policy.
- 24.5. In using the Authority's and the programme's name and logo, the Grant Recipient will comply with all reasonable branding guidelines issued by the Authority from time to time. If a third party wishes to use the Authority's or the programme's logo, the Grant Recipient must first seek permissions from the Authority.

24.6. The Grant Recipient will comply with all reasonable requests from the Authority to facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs and case studies that will assist the Authority in its promotional and fundraising activities relating to the Funded Activities.

#### 25. CONFIDENTIALITY

- 25.1. For the purposes of this clause 25, the term "Disclosing Party" shall mean a Party which discloses or makes available directly or indirectly its Confidential Information and "Recipient" shall mean the Party which receives or obtains directly or indirectly Confidential Information.
- 25.2. Except to the extent set out in this clause 25 or where disclosure is expressly permitted elsewhere in this Agreement, the Recipient shall:
  - 25.2.1. treat the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information as confidential and keep it in secure custody (which is appropriate depending upon the form in which such materials are stored and the nature of the Confidential Information contained in those materials); and
  - 25.2.2. not disclose the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information to any other person except as expressly set out in this Agreement or without obtaining the owner's prior written consent;
  - 25.2.3. not use or exploit the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in any way except for the purposes anticipated under this Agreement; and
  - 25.2.4. immediately notify the Disclosing Party if it suspects or becomes aware of any unauthorised access, copying, use or disclosure in any form of any of the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information.
- 25.3. The Recipient shall be entitled to disclose the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party where:
  - 25.3.1. the Recipient is required to disclose the Confidential Information by any Law, provided that clause 28 shall apply to disclosures required under the Information Acts;
  - 25.3.2. the need for such disclosure arises out of or in connection with:
    - any legal challenge or potential legal challenge against the Authority arising out of or in connection with this Agreement;
    - b) the examination and certification of the Authority's accounts (provided that the disclosure is made on a confidential basis) orfor any examination pursuant to Section 6(1) of the National Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which the Authority is making use of any of the Funded Activities provided under this Agreement; or
    - the conduct of a Central Government Body review in respect of this Agreement;
       or
  - 25.3.3. the Recipient has reasonable grounds to believe that the Disclosing Party is involved in activity that may constitute a criminal offence under the Bribery Act 2010 and the disclosure is being made to the Serious Fraud Office.
- 25.4. If the Recipient is required by any Law to make a disclosure of Confidential Information, the Recipient shall as soon as reasonably practicable and to the extent permitted by Law notify the Disclosing Party of the full circumstances of the required disclosure including the relevant Law and/or regulatory body requiring such disclosure and the Confidential Information to which such disclosure would apply.

- 25.5. Subject to paragraph 25.2, the Grant Recipient may only disclose the Confidential Information of the Authority on a confidential basis to:
  - 25.5.1. Grant Recipient staff who are directly involved in the delivery of the Funded Activities and need to know the Confidential Information to enable performance of the Grant Recipient's obligations under this Agreement; and
  - 25.5.2. its professional advisers for the purposes of obtaining advice in relation to this Agreement.
- 25.6. Where the Grant Recipient discloses Confidential Information of the Authority pursuant to clause 25.5, it shall remain responsible at all times for compliance with the confidentiality obligations set out in this Agreement by the persons to whom disclosure has been made.
- 25.7. The Authority may disclose the Confidential Information of the Grant Recipient:
  - 25.7.1. to any Central Government Body on the basis that the information may only be further disclosed to Central Government Bodies;
  - 25.7.2. to the British Parliament and any committees of the British Parliament or if required by any British Parliamentary reporting requirement;
  - 25.7.3. to the extent that the Authority (acting reasonably) deems disclosure necessary or appropriate in the course of carrying out its public functions;
  - 25.7.4. on a confidential basis to a professional adviser, consultant, supplier or other person engaged by any of the entities described in clause 25.7.1 for any purpose relating to or connected with this Agreement;
  - 25.7.5. on a confidential basis for the purpose of the exercise of its rights under this Agreement; or
  - 25.7.6. to a proposed transferee, assignee or novatee of, or successor in title to the Authority,

and for the purposes of the foregoing, references to disclosure on a confidential basis shall mean disclosure subject to a confidentiality agreement or arrangement containing terms no less stringent than those placed on the Authority under clause 28

- 25.8. Nothing in clause **Error! Reference source not found.** shall prevent a Grant Recipient from using any techniques, ideas or know-how gained during the performance of this Agreement in the course of its normal business to the extent that this use does not result in a disclosure of the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information or an infringement of Intellectual Property Rights.
- 25.9. Failure by the Grant Recipient to comply with clauses 25.2 to 25.5 shall constitute a Material Breach.

#### 26. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION, DATA PROTECTION AND HUMAN RIGHTS

- 26.1. The Grant Recipient must observe its obligations under Information Acts and HRA, and under the common law duty of confidentiality and shall comply with all applicable Laws (and shall notify the Authority immediately of any significant departure from such Laws).
- 26.2. The Grant Recipient hereby acknowledges that the Authority is subject to requirements under the Information Acts. Where requested by the Authority, the Grant Recipient will provide reasonable assistance and cooperation to the Authority to assist the Authority's compliance with its information disclosure obligations.

- 26.3. On request from the Authority, the Grant Recipient will provide the Authority with all such relevant documents and information relating to the Grant Recipient's data protection policies and procedures as the Authority may reasonably require.
- 26.4. The Grant Recipient acknowledges that the Authority, acting in accordance with the codes of practice issued and revised from time to time under the Information Acts, may disclose information concerning the Grant Recipient and this Agreement without consulting with the Grant Recipient.
- 26.5. The Authority will take reasonable steps to notify the Grant Recipient of a request for information to the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practical for it to do so but (notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement) the Authority will be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the Information Acts.
- 26.6. The Grant Recipient agrees that it is the Controller of any Personal Data processed by it pursuant to the Funded Activities.
- 26.7. The Grant Recipient agrees that the Authority, its employees and contractors may use Personal Data which the Grant Recipient provides about its staff, partners and participants involved in the Funded Activities to administer and evaluate the Grants programme, and to exercise the Authority's rights under this Agreement.
- 26.8. The Grant Recipient agrees that the Authority may share details of the Grant, the name of the Grant Recipient's organisation and any personal data obtained from it with the UK Government and that such details may appear on the Government Grants Information System database which is available for search by other funders.
- 26.9. The Grant Recipient will notify the Authority of any change to its constitution, legal form, membership structure (if applicable) or ownership, and of any complaint or investigation by any regulatory body or the police into its activities or those of its staff or officers or volunteers.

## 27. ODA

- 27.1. The Grant Recipient acknowledges that it is the Authority's intention that all monies paid to the Grant Recipient will be properly categorised as ODA by the OECD.
- 27.2. The Grant Recipient shall undertake reasonable endeavours to ensure that all monies paid to the Grant Recipient can properly be categorised as ODA by the OECD.
- 27.3. The Grant Recipient shall notify the Authority of any concern it has that monies paid to the Grant Recipient cannot or may not be properly categorised as ODA by the OECD as soon as reasonably practical.
- 27.4. If, as a consequence of breach or negligent performance or non-performance of this Agreement, monies provided to the Grant Recipient are not classified as ODA by OECD, the Grant Recipient shall repay to DHSC a sum equal to the amount which the OECD determines is not ODA.

#### 28. ODA TRANSPARENCY

- 28.1. The Authority and the Grant Recipient acknowledge that, except for any information which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the Information Acts, the content of this Agreement is not Confidential Information.
- 28.2. The Authority will be responsible for determining whether any of the content of the Agreement is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA. The Grant Recipient agrees that the Authority may make any redactions of this Agreement the Authority considers appropriate when disclosing this Agreement.
- 28.3. Subject to clause 28.1, The Grant Recipient gives consent for this Agreement (and any subsequent amendments) and associated funding information to be published by the Authority to the general public.
- 28.4. The Grant Recipient acknowledges that the Authority supports the requirements of the International Aid Transparency Initiative (IATI) Standard and shall, at the Authority's reasonable request, provide all necessary assistance to enable the Authority to meet the IATI Standard which shall include the provision of all information and data necessary for the transparent, accurate, timely and comprehensive publishing of all data on all activities related to the delivery of development co-operation and humanitarian aid
- 28.5. The Grant Recipient will publish to the International Aid Transparency Initiative (IATI) standard on all its Authority ODA funding within six months of the start of this Agreement. The Authority expects the Grant Recipient to publish to the IATI standard on all its non-Authority ODA funding and for its Downstream Partners to publish to the IATI standard on their ODA funding. The intention of this commitment is to allow traceability throughout the delivery chain. For more details on IATI standards see: <a href="http://www.aidt ransparency.net/">http://www.aidt ransparency.net/</a>

# 29. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

- 29.1. Save as expressly granted elsewhere in this Agreement the Grant Recipient will retain:
  - 29.1.1. its Pre-existing IPR; and
  - 29.1.2. IPR created by it during the period of the Grant.
- 29.2. The Authority will retain:
  - 29.2.1. its Pre-existing IPR; and
  - 29.2.2. IPR in all reports, materials and other documents produced in whole or in part using the Grant provided under this Agreement.
- 29.3. Other than as expressly set out in this Agreement, neither Party will have any right to use any of the other Party's names, logos or trade marks on any of its products or services without the other Party's prior written consent.
- 29.4. The Grant Recipient shall at all times make all IPR referred to in clause 29.1.2 above publicly available without restriction using an appropriate licence agreed with the Authority (which may be, without limitation, the Open Government Licence or an appropriate Creative Commons Licence).

- 29.5. The Grant Recipient grants to the Authority a non-exclusive, royalty-free, sub-licensable license to use the IPR referred to in clause 29.1.2 above
- 29.6. The Authority may freely share any information, know-how, system or process developed during the period of the grant Funded Activities to support similar project s.
- 29.7. Ownership of third party software or other IPR necessary to deliver Funded Activities will remain with the relevant third party.
- 29.8. The Grant Recipient must ensure that they have obtained the relevant agreement from the third party proprietor before any additions or variations are made to the standard 'off-the-shelf' versions of any third party software and other IPR. The Grant Recipient will obtain and maintain all appropriate licences to use the third party software.

# 30. ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

- 30.1. The Grant Recipient shall perform the Funded Activities in a way so as to conserve energy, water, wood, paper and other resources, reduce waste and phase out the use of ozone depleting substances and minimise the release of greenhouse gases, volatile organic compounds and other substances damaging to health and the environment.
- 30.2. The Grant Recipient shall pay due regard to the use of recycled products, so long as they are not detrimental to the provision of the Funded Activities or the environment, to include the use of all packaging, which should be capable of recovery for re-use or recycling.
- 30.3. The Grant Recipient shall take all possible precautions to ensure that any equipment and materials used in the provision of the Funded Activities do not contain chlorofluorocarbons, halons or any other damaging substances, unless unavoidable, in which case the Authority shall be notified in advance of their use. The Grant Recipient shall endeavour to reduce fuel emissions wherever possible.

#### 31. CHANGES TO THE AUTHORITY'S REQUIREMENTS

- 31.1. The Authority will notify the Grant Recipient of any changes to its activities which are supported by the Grant.
- 31.2. The Grant Recipient will endeavour to accommodate any changes to the Authority's needs and requirements under this Agreement.

#### 32. TERMINATION

- 32.1. Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving at least 3 months' written notice to the other Party.
- 32.2. The Authority may by written notice to the Grant Recipient terminate this Agreement with immediate effect if any of the following events occur:
  - 32.2.1. The Grant Recipient intends to use, has used in the past, or uses the Grant for purposes other than those for which they have been awarded;

- 32.2.2. The Grant Recipient fails to comply with the KPI targets of this Agreement as updated from time to time and set out in Annex 6 (Agreed Outputs) for more than three (3) consecutive months, or three (3) consecutive months in any six (6) month rolling period and:
  - a) following the implementation of a Remedial Action Plan the Authority considers that the KPI failure persists; or
  - b) the KPI failure has not been remedied to the satisfaction of the Authority; or
  - c) the KPI failure reoccurs within a subsequent 6-month period from the date of approval of the Remedial Action Plan;
- 32.2.3. the Grant Recipient is, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, delivering the Funded Activities in a negligent manner;
- 32.2.4. the Grant Recipient obtains duplicate funding from a third party for the Funded Activities;
- 32.2.5. the Grant Recipient obtains funding from a third party which, in the reasonable opinion of the Authority, undertakes activities that are likely to bring the reputation of the Funded Activities or the Authority into disrepute;
- 32.2.6. the Grant Recipient provides the Authority with any materially misleading or inaccurate information:
- 32.2.7. the Grant Recipient commits or committed a Prohibited Act;
- 32.2.8. the Authority determines (acting reasonably) that any director or employee of the Grant Recipient has:
  - a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time during the term of this Agreement and to the detriment of the Authority; or
  - b) taken any actions which unfairly bring or are likely to unfairly bring the Authority's name or reputation and/or the Authority into disrepute;
- 32.2.9. the Grant Recipient transfers, assigns or novates to any third party, or encumbers in any way, the Grant without the Authority's consent;
- 32.2.10.the Grant Recipient ceases to operate for any reason, or it passes a resolution (or any court of competent jurisdiction makes an order) that it be wound up or dissolved (other than for the purpose of a bona fide and solvent reconstruction or amalgamation);
- 32.2.11.the Grant Recipient becomes insolvent, or it is declared bankrupt, or it is placed into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a petition has been presented for its winding up, or it enters into any arrangement or composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is unable to pay its debts as they fall due;
- 32.2.12. the Grant is found to be unlawful State Aid;
- 32.2.13. the Grant Recipient commits a Material Breach of the Agreement.
- 32.3. In the event of a Breach (other than a Material Breach), the Authority may serve a notice on the Grant Recipient requiring remedial action to be taken within a period as specified by the Authority (such period not more than 20 Working Days). If the Breach is not remedied within the period specified by the Authority, the failure to remedy the Breach will amount to a Material Breach.
- 32.4. In the event a change of government or in policy direction, this Agreement may be terminated by the Authority with immediate effect by notice in writing (such notice period as the Authority determines will be reasonable in all the circumstances).

#### 33. AMENDMENT OR VARIATION OF THE AGREEMENT

33.1. No amendment or variation to this Agreement will be effective unless it is in writing, agreed and signed by the Representatives on behalf of each of the Pa rties.

#### 34. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION AND SUPPORT FOR TRANSFER OF RESPONSIBILITY

- 34.1. Nothing in this Agreement will affect any provision of this Grant which is expressly or by implication intended to apply or continue to apply following termination of this Agreement, for any reason.
- 34.2. If the Authority terminates this Agreement in accordance with clause 32.1 the Authority may pay the Grant Recipient's reasonable costs in respect of the delivery of the Funded Activities performed up to the termination date. Reasonable costs will be identified by the Grant Recipient and will be subject to the Grant Recipient demonstrating that they have taken adequate steps to mitigate their costs. For the avoidance of doubt, the amount of reasonable costs payable or whether they are even payable altogether will be determined solely by the Authority.
- 34.3. The Authority will not be liable to pay any of the Grant Recipient 's costs or those of any contractor/supplier of the Grant Recipient related to any transfer or termination of the employment of any employees engaged in the provision of the Funded Activities prior to the date of termination.
- 34.4. Upon receiving notice of termination from the Authority, the Grant Recipient will review, amend and implement the agreed Exit Plan or equivalent with the Aut hority .
- 34.5. The Grant Recipient will repay any unspent or outstanding Grant to the Authority within 20 Working Days of the termination or expiry of this Agreement.
- 34.6. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Agreement, termination or expiry of the Agreement shall be without prejudice to any rights, remedies or obligations accrued under the Agreement prior to termination or expiration and nothing in the Agreement shall prejudice the right of either party to recover any amount outstanding at such termination or expiry.

## 35. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 35.1. The Parties will use all reasonable endeavours to negotiate in good faith, and settle amicably, any dispute that arises during the continuance of the Agreement.
- 35.2. All disputes and complaints (except for those which relate to the Authority's right to withhold funds or terminate this Agreement) shall be referred in the first instance to the Parties Representatives.
- 35.3. If the dispute cannot be resolved between the authorised points of contact within a maximum of 60 days, then the matter will be escalated to formal meeting between the Grant Manager and the Grant Recipient's chief executive (or equivalent).
- 35.4. Without prejudice to any other rights or remedies that the Authority may have, the Authority reserves the right to seek injunctive or other appropriate relief for sufficiently serious, time-critical, actual or anticipated Breach.

#### 36. NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

36.1. This Agreement shall not create any partnership or joint venture between the Authority and the Grant Recipient, nor any relationship of principal and agent, nor authorise any Party to make or enter into any commitments for or on behalf of the other Party.

#### 37. JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

37.1. Where the Grant Recipient is neither a company nor an incorporated entity with a distinct legal personality of its own, the individuals who enter into and sign this Agreement on behalf of the Grant Recipient shall be jointly and severally liable for the Grant Recipient's obligations and liabilities arising under this Agreement.

#### 38. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

- 38.1. This Agreement does not and is not intended to create contractual relations between the Parties.
- 38.2. This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any contractual benefit on any other person not Party to it pursuant to the terms of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which exists or is available otherwise than pursuant to that Act.

#### 39. RESEARCH SURVEYS, QUESTIONNAIRES

- 39.1. The Authority may occasionally conduct research exercises, including by way of surveys, or questionnaires, or requests for feedback, into your experience of the Grant, and on your business needs, and other related matters. Participation in any such exercise would be confidential and voluntary, and the results will be handled in such a way that they do not identify individual respondents, unless consent is obtained or, for instance, you agree to be contacted as a case study.
- 39.2. For the purposes of analysing the outcome of any research, your input may be combined with other information which we have, but we will do so in a way that does not affect the anonymity of the individual part icipant s. The Authority will share any reports and findings of any such exercise on an anonymised basis with any or all of the Related Parties from time to time.
- 39.3. Any information about yourself and/or your business which is disclosed to Authority in the course of any such exercise shall be added to, and become part of, the Data, and the Terms and Conditions of this Agreement shall apply to it.

## 40. NOTICES

40.1. All notices and other communications in relation to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered, e-mailed, or mailed (first class postage prepaid) to the address of the relevant party, as referred to above or otherwise notified in writing. If personally delivered or if e-mailed all such communications shall be deemed to have been given when received (except that if received on a non-working day or

ODA Grant Agreement T & Cs (V2-June 2020)

after 5.00 pm on any Working Day they shall be deemed received on the next Working Day) and if mailed all such communications shall be deemed to have been given and received on the second Working Day following such mailing.

# 41. GOVERNING LAW

41.1. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and the parties irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.

SIGNED by:	Flf.Cll\fiOCi"-Cl&,t,,, ,,,, ,,, ,,
Nick Adkin for and on behalf of	Deputy Director, Global Health Security
the Authority	Title
	04-Nov-2021 14 :49 PM GMT
	Date
	DocuSigned by
SIGNED by	F62CB8195FF34RP
	Signature
All and Kanadatha farman har	Chief Operating Officer
Alice Kang'ethe for and on behalf of the Grant Recipient	Title
	05-Nov-2021 1 2:48 PM GMT
	Date

### **ANNEX 1- Grant Offer Letter**

Internat ional Directorate
Department for Health and Social Care
39 Victoria Street
London
SWIH OEU

Clinton Health Access Initaitive, Inc (CHAI) 383 Dorchester Avenue, Suite 400 Boston, MA 02127 USA

Date: 4th November 2021

# Dear Alice Kang'ethe,

The Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) is pleased to inform you that a grant to Clinton Health Access Initiat ive, Inc (CHAI) has been approved, up to a maximum of £645,408 for the project entitled: A Market Shaping Framework for AMR Innovations for low- and middle-income countries, set out in the Grant Agreement, at Annex 2 (Funded Activities), and for the outputs defined in Annex 6 (Agreed Outputs). This Grant has been approved for the period of 4 November 2021 to 31 March 2022.

#### **ADVICE**

This Offer Letter, together with the terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement, and accompanying Annexes together comprise the "Agreement" pursuant to which financial assistance (in the form of the Grant) is given by the Authority to the Grant Recipient. Please read all parts of this Agreement carefully.

## **ACTION FOR YOU TO TAKE**

Please confirm that the Grant Recipient has read and understood this offer and accepts all the conditions set out in it and the Grant Agreement by arranging for the person with lawful authority to accept on behalf of the Grant Recipient by signing the agreement with an electronic signature through DocuSign.

We look forward to working with you and through funding this important framework, working together to help improve the health and well-beingof people living in low and middle-income countries.

Yours Sincerely,



Nick Adkin
Deputy Director, Global Healt h Security

#### **ANNEX 2 - The Funded Activities**

## 1. Background/purpose of the Grant

## 1.1. Background

Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) is a growing global problem to which the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic may further contribute. With resources deployed away from antimicrobial stewardship, evidence of substantial pre-emptive antibiotic use in COVID-19 patients and indirectly, with deteriorating economic conditions fuelling poverty potentially impacting on levels of resistance, AMR threat remains significant<sup>1</sup>. Reducing the dissemination and transmission of resistant bacteria within and between animal and human populations is central when aiming to fight AMR. There is global recognition that the ability of bacteria to disseminate from one setting to another, sometimes over large geographic distances and among the different populations, makes it difficult to explain with certainty the origin of resistant bacteria strains<sup>2</sup>. Therefore, the reservoirs and the transmission pathways of antimicrobial-resistant bacteria merit further investigation, ideally through a One-Health approach.

Without prompt and focused intervention, AMR threatens progress with global infectious disease reduction efforts while also reducing the impact of non-communicable disease programs such as cancer care and diabetes. AMR will continue to take a heavy toll in low- and middle-income countries (LMICs) where there are typically lower health system capacities and higher rates of infectious disease. GAMRIF plays a critical role in supporting the development of new drug and diagnostic products tailored to LMICs. These interventions are intended to address challenges in managing patients currently suffering with drug-resistant infections and to prevent the further emergence and greater spread of AMR globally.

# 1.2. Aims and objectives of the Funded Activity

CHAI understands GAMRIF's mission t o3:

- Establish international research partnerships and support research competitions that fund innovation and development of new technologies to tackle AMR;
- Leverage investment from other partners and donors to support sustainable financing for AMR;
- Establish global research partnerships using a 'One Health' approach; and
- Fund projects that will develop solutions specifically for LMICs.

CHAI believes that a sound market shaping strategy is needed that holistically addresses many of the supply-side barriers to access in LMICs for key drugs and diagnostics. This strategy will also help identify a) critical challenges contributing to management of AMR in countries, and b) various opportunities for existing and innovative new drugs and diagnostics to reduce the threat of AMR and save lives. The envisioned market shaping activities will complement GAMRIF's mission as outlined above.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> https://aricjournal.biomedce ntral.com/articles/10.1186/s13756-021-00893-z

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC5605663/

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> https://www.gov.uk/government/ groups/the-globa I-amr-i nnovation-fu nd

As a first step, CHAI will focus on efficient diagnostics and resistance testing to inform appropriate treatment options. Through improved access to and use of point of care (POC) diagnostics at the primary health level, there is the potential to reduce initial antibiotic prescription rates, antibiotic treatment duration, in-hospital and ICU length of stay, and the likelihood of antibiotic-caused adverse events.

CHAI proposes a four-step process to develop a sustainable market shaping strategy for AMR:

- 1) In-count ry landscaping to collect data on the various dimensions of the AMR spectrum
- 2) Evaluating identified issues for market shaping potential
- 3) Matching issues with market shaping interventions
- 4) Detailing out operational models for high priority market shaping interventions

Through this five-month partnership with GAMRIF, CHAI will undertake step 1, the in-country landscaping analysis. The scope of step 1 is critical to inform the identification of any large-scale interventions. We expect that this will provide insights into developing a comprehensive actional strategy that can enable national level interventions and potential market shaping int ervent ions.

# 2. Funded Activities

This proposed project will enable CHAI to execute the first step of the four-step market shaping process. Work will take place in four geographies, Kenya, Malawi, India (two states), Vietnam and Laos, and will focus on gonorrhea and sepsis.

The first stage of the work to be carried out in this project will be to finalize a list of questions to be used in country level data collection. The aim will be to collect a comprehensive and holistic set of information across the various dimensions of the AMR spectrum. CHAI has developed an initial list of questions for data collection in country and will discuss and prioritize these questions with GAMRIF at the project kick-off meeting. An output from that meeting will be a standardized questionnaire with a select subset of questions agreed upon that can be evaluated during this project.

CHAI proposes the establishment of a joint project steering committee comprised of appropriate members of CHAI, GAMRIF, and partners such as Cornell University (and other co-funder s). The steering committee will ensure the project is kept within scope, and that it delivers valuable insight to guide GAMRIF's strategy and decision-making.

CHAI will work with its country offices to develop an appropriate data collection plan based on the prioritized list of questions agreed with the steering committee. Data collection will be undertaken using a two-pronged approach: a) <u>qualitative</u> interviewing of stakeholders to gather responses to the priority questions agreed with the steering committee, and b) <u>quantitative</u> exercise to collect relative quantitative information (e.g., prices, volumes by channel etc).

CHAI will train its teams on collecting data based on questions listed to make the data collection process objective and fact based. This will also allow for the process to be replicated in other countries as needed in a subsequent phase of work. While the intent is to collect as much of this data as possible in a structured and quantitative manner, CHAI appreciates that it may not be possible within the project duration to exhaustively collect all this data. CHAI estimates an exhaustive data collection exercise would involve site and patient surveys, and collection of supplementary primary data and would take between 12-18 months depending on the scope of work and potential need for ethical approvals. CHAI's efforts in this project will primarily be focussed on public sector facilities, CHAI will collect supplemental private sector data where possible.

ODA Grant Agreement T & Cs (V2-June 2020)

The approach to addressing challenges in animal health will be to identify drugs and diagnostics in the poultry and aquaculture sectors used in animal health. CHAI is looking to partner with Cornell University and the International Centre for Antimicrobial Solutions {ICARS} (formal agreement still to be confirmed) to gain relevant expertise and guidance to the evaluation of the animal health components of this program. The project will look to evaluate the actual use cases in-country as compared with the stipulations in the national plans with a view to identifying gaps in practice. The outcome of this scoping will provide insights on irrational use of antibiotics and potential context specific national level interventions.

Learnings from the assessment could provide a model for other countries to undertake similar mapping to identify AMR-related practices, challenges, and gaps. These assessments will help inform a holistic approach to developing appropriately targeted market shaping initiatives, whether regional, global, or country-led. CHAI will share its findings broadly with key stakeholders so that the learnings and information can be used to shape investments, policy, and interventions.

# **ANNEX 3 - Payment and Reporting Schedule**

# a) Payment Schedule

INSTALMENT / INSTALMENT PERIOD	GRANT SUM PAYABLE	PAYMENT DATE / MILESTONE (month and year)
Year 1, in sta Iment 1	£ 390,446.17	Paid within 10 business days aft er signatur e
Year 1, inst alment 2	£ 254,961.39	Paid within 10 business days aft er financial report for inst alment 1 (target date: 31 Janua ry 2022)
Total for Grant	£ 645,407.57	

# b) Reporting Schedule

Reporting period	Due date	Financial reporting requirements	Technical reporting requirements
4 November 2021 to 31 December 2021	31 January 2022	Expendit ure report for reporting period  Updated budget forecast for next reporting period, 1 January 2022 t o 31 M arch 2022 (with short narr ative explaining any changes)  Payment request fo r second inst alment	Brief summary progressreport including a narrative of activit ies and progress
Full project	15 May 2022	Final expenditur e and reconciliat ion of b udget	Final narrative of all act ivities und ert aken to support the Funde d Act ivities  Final delivery chain map  Final asset register

c) A joint proj ect steering committ ee comprised of appropriate members of CHAI and GAM RIF. This will ensure the project is kept within scope, and t hat it delivers valuable insight to guide GAM RIF's strategy and decision-making. The steering committ ee will meet monthly or on an as needed basis. Committ ee meetings will be used to review and measure progress against the program objectivesas agreed in the project kick-off meeting.

# FURTHER GUIDANCE REGARDING ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURE

All Eligible Expenditure must be claimed net of VAT recoverable from HM Revenue and Customs.

The following costs/payments will be classified as Eligible Expenditure if made for the purposes of the Funded Activity:

- i. fees charged or to be charged to the Grant Recipient by the external auditors/accountants for reporting/certifying that the grant paid was applied for its intended purposes;
- ii. giving evidence to Select Committees;
- iii. attending meetings with Ministers or officials to discuss the progress of a taxpayer funded grant scheme;
- iv. responding to public consultations, where the topic is relevant to the objectives of the grant scheme. This does not include spending government grant funds on lobbying other people to respond to the consultation;
- v. providing independent, evidence based policy recommendations to local government, departments or Ministers, where that is the objective of a taxpayer funded grant scheme, for example, 'What Works Centres'; and
- vi. providing independent evidence based advice to local or national government as part of the general policy debate, where that is in line with the objectives of the grant scheme.

A payment is defined as taking place at the moment when money passes out of Grant Recipient control. This may take place when:

- I. legal tender is passed to a supplier (or, for wages, to an employee);
- II. a letter is posted to a supplier or employee containing a cheque; or
- **III.** an electronic instruction is sent to a bank/building society to make a payment to a supplier or employee by direct credit or bank transfer.

The Grant Recipient <u>must not</u> deliberately incur liabilities for Eligible Expenditure in advance of need; nor pay for Eligible Expenditure sooner than the due date for payment.

#### **INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURE**

The following costs must be excluded from Eligible Expenditure:

- payment that supports for lobbying or activity intended to influence or attempt to influence Parliament, Government or political parties, or attempting to influence the awarding or renewal of contracts and grants, or attempting to influence legislative or regulatory action;
- II. using grant funds to directly enable one part of government to challenge another on topics unrelated to the agreed purpose of the Grant;
- III. using the Grant to petition for additional funding;
- IV. input VAT;
- V. payments for activities of a political or exclusively religious nature;
- VI. goods or services that the Grant Recipient has a statutory duty to provide;
- VII. payments reimbursed or to be reimbursed by other public or private sector grants
- VIII. contributions in kind (i.e. a contribution in goods or services, as opposed to money);
  - IX. depreciation, amortisation or impairment of fixed assets owned by the Grant Recipient;
  - X. the acquisition or improvement of fixed assets by the Grant Recipient (unless the grant is explicitly for capital use this will be stipulated in the Grant Offer Letter);
- XI. Interest payments (including service charge payments for finance leases);
- XII. gifts
- XIII. entertaining (entertaining for this purpose means anything that would be a taxable benefit to the person being entertained, according to current UK tax regulations);
- XIV. statutory fines, criminal fines or penalties; or
- XV. liabilities incurred before the date of this Agreement unless agreed in writing by the Authority.

#### **ANNEX 5 - Grant Claim Form**



Attention: Accounts Payable

# Title and Details of Funding

Organisation CHAI

Title of Grant / Project name A Market Shaping Framework for AMR

innovations for low- and middle-income

countries

Project Location Global

**Details of Expenditure** 

 $DHSC\,Component\,Code/\,Purchase\,Order\,No.$ 

Date of Claim

Period of Funding Request [dd/mm/yyyy] to [dd/mm/yyyy]

Payment Request AAGAnt

## **Bank Details**

Bank Name:	
Bank Postal Address:	
Name of Account:	
Bank Account Number:	
Sort Code:	
Currency of Bank Account:	
IBAN number: [required for bank accounts within Europe]	
SWIFT number:	
ABA or BIC Number: [BIC required for bank accounts within Europe]	
Intermediary bank details:	
Bank Email Address:	

# **Audit Discharge**

Specify details of audit discharge through annual audited statements | continuous audit | agency audit

# Certification

I certify that this claim is correct and that the sum requested is properly due on the basis of the information provided, project objectives and on the work carried out or future work plans. I have the authority to sign this on behalf of CHAI.

Furthermore, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the expenditure declared has not been used for any ineligible purposes, as set out in Annex 4.

Authorised Signatory:	Date
Name:	
Position:	
Address/Contact Details:	

#### ANNEX 6 - Agreed Outputs/Long Term Outcomes and Key Performance Indicators

The Grant Recipient shall achieve the following milestones and key performance indicators:

## **Agreed Outputs:**

- 1. Interim study results shared with GAMRIF team
- 2. Final report shared with GAMRIF team

## **Key Performance Indicators/ milestones:**

KPIs measured quarterly	
Finalized, prioritized list of questions agreed with Steering Committee	
Data collection - country data collection started	
Interim study results shared with GAMRIF team	
Final report - Interim study report delivered	

KPIs measured annually

n/a - project is under one year

# **Long Term Objectives:**

This project is the first of four envisioned steps in a broader market shaping initiative. This project will provide important "ground truth" and insight that will enable GAMRIF to bett er target its investments and clearly map out how its funded innovations will address in-country challenges. This work will pave the way for broader AMR market shaping initiatives at both the country and global level. Should these projects be funded, GAMRIF will have catalyzed the value of additional donor investments in this space as well as seeded the value for money through potential global market shaping interventions.